
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, March 6th, 2012.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 
Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member 
Peter Daly, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney

 



Ed Vergano, Town Engineer 



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning  



*



*



*

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated before we start, our Vice Chair is going to have an announcement to make.
Mr. John Bernard stated I’ve taken a temporary job out of the area and I’ll be leaving after this meeting for approximately four months during which time the Town Board has been thinking about having someone sit in so that you have a complete contingent of people on the Board during that time.  But, after the four month duration I’ll be back in the area and back on the Planning Board.  I just want to let people know why you won’t see me for a while.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good luck with your job.



*



*



*

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF FEBRUARY 7, 2012
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked may I have a motion to approve the minutes of February 7th?
So moved. Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I just have a few and I’ll give to Chris.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS
PB 4-08      a.
Application of Kevin Gragert for Final Plat Approval for a 2 lot major subdivision of an 11.59 acre parcel of property located on the east side of Ernst Road at the intersection with Fowler Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Gragert Subdivision – Subdivision Plat” prepared by John Harris Decker, LS dated November 11, 2011 and on a drawing entitled “Gragert 2 Lot Subdivision Plan” prepared by John Kalin, P.E. latest revision dated April 14, 2011.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re happy to give you a final approval.  We do have a Resolution it’s 5-12.  
Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we approve Resolution 5-12 approving this application.

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated have you seen this?  Have you talked to staff about it?

Mr. Gragert responded yes, thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated because there are several conditions attached to it.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 5-08      b.
Application of Percy & Barbara Montes for Final Plat Approval for a 5 lot major subdivision of an 8.760 acre parcel of property located at the end of Radio Terrace as shown on a Final Plat entitled “Subdivision of Property Known as Radio Estates”, prepared by Robert S. Johnson, L.S. dated January 17, 2012 and on drawings entitled “Improvement & Integrated Plot Plan for Subdivision of Radio Estates”, and “Profiles & Details latest revision dated December 20, 2011 and “Erosion and Sediment Control Plan” latest revision dated November 4, 2011 all prepared by Badey & Watson, P.C. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated again, we have an approving Resolution for you it’s Resolution 6-12.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairman I move that we adopt Resolution 6-12.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye."

*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE
PB 21-05    a.
Letter dated February 21, 2012 from Jesse Stackhouse requesting the 7th ninety-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Hillside Estates subdivision located on Locust Avenue.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is anybody here?  No.  There is a Resolution for them; Resolution 7-12.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairman I’ll move that we approve Resolution #7-12 granting the 7th 90-day time extension.

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked now you’ve had a conversation with them about the number of extensions or not?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, we met with them actually earlier this week.  Yes.  They’re actively working on the improvements.  They may need some more time extensions but they’ve been made aware that their number is escalating.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they’ve got their Resolution for that.



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARING (NEW)
PB 10-11    a.
Application of Percy & Barbara Montes for the renewal of the Child Care Special Permit for a Child Care center located at 18 Radio Terrace as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Theodore Strauss, R.A. latest revision dated June 11, 2007.  (see prior PB 39-06)

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing for the benefit for those who are in the audience.  If you have any comments to make this is the time that you can come forward and make the comments on this particular application.  Any Board members who have anything to say?
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked the Architectural Advisory Board has looked at the plans?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded they looked at them the first time.  There weren’t any changes to the building.  They signed off on them whenever that was; five years ago.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we close the public hearing and prepare a Resolution approval for April 3th.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS 
PB 11-11    a.
Application of CRP Sanitation, for the property of 2 Bayview Road, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval for the demolition of approximately 8,000 sq. ft. of an existing 10,300 sq. ft. one story block building and the construction of a 12,000 sq. ft. one story steel building (for a total building area of 14,300 sq. ft.) and for the parking of trucks and roll-off containers and for the renewal of a Special Permit for a Contractor’s Yard on a 6.388 acre parcel of property located at 2 Bayview Road as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Amended Site Plan for CRP Sanitation” prepared by Cronin Engineering latest revision dated January 25, 2012 (see prior PB 15-02).

Mr. Jim Teed stated with Cronin Engineering.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you have any comments that you wanted to make before the Board?

Mr. Jim Teed responded no.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we decided that we would take a site visit.  I don’t know whether you were there for that site visit on Sunday.  Were you there?

Mr. Jim Teed responded no, it was Jim Annicchiarico.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there was a site visit and I wanted to know from Board members if there were any things that you had concerns about as you walked the site.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just on the site visit, you mentioned – there’s an above-ground gas, big gas container.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded oh yes, the diesel.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mr. Kessler thought maybe there could be more bollards or protection around it.  I think I mentioned it to Ron from your office.  I haven’t actually talked to Jim Annicchiarico about it but we’ll let the applicant know that maybe they should put some more bollards or something around that diesel fuel storage.  The other issue that came up at the site inspection is the elevation drawings aren’t done yet.  Then the issue for the Board, if you so desired, would be to schedule a public hearing, if you wanted to, while you were waiting for the elevations to come.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are they about to come?  There’s no sense in…

Mr. Tim Cronin responded the architect’s been retained and we were hopeful that we would have them for tonight’s meeting but unfortunately weren’t able to produce them in time.  We can get them to the staff, I suspect, by the middle of next week.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so in other words, they will definitely be here by the time the public hearing…

Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes, I’m hopeful this week but don’t want to commit to it so I’m thinking next week some time.  It’s out of my office – it’s an architect.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how do you feel about that?  Do you want to go forward with a public hearing at this point?

Mr. John Bernard responded yes, I think so.  I thought on that site visit was considerably improved from the previous visit that we made four years ago, five years ago, I don’t know.  Those other miscellaneous contractor yards had been removed and the one remaining was a very small footprint and it just looked like a much cleaner facility.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it does.  I didn’t go out there on Sunday but I was out there on Friday and I was very taken with the amount of improvement because I told them I’d been there nearly a decade ago, I think almost and it was a mess but it has definitely improved so I’m happy about that.

Mr. Jim Teed responded thank you very much.  I’ll let the applicant know.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to schedule a public hearing.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I’d like to have a scheduled public hearing for April 3rd but also the question of the elevation drawings came up and hopefully we’ll have them as soon as possible.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, we really want those drawings before the public hearing takes place.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see you next week.

PB 43-06    b.
Application of Michael Ryan for Final Plat approval for a 3 lot major subdivision of a 4.33 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Watch Hill Road, at the intersection of John Alexander Drive, as shown on a final plat entitled “Subdivision Map prepared for Michael Ryan” prepared by William J. Simmons, L.S. latest revision dated February 9, 2012 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Integrated Plot Plan” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin, III, P.E. latest revision dated December 21, 2011.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we’re just about all settled with that one.  There are no other things that have come up with that right?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s an application for Final Approval.  It’s got approval of the Health Department.  It’s in compliance with the preliminary approval.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we direct staff to prepare a Resolution for the April 3rd in favor of this application.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 7-09      c.
Letter dated February 22, 2012 from David Steinmetz, Esq. requesting the Planning Board amend PB Resolution 1-10 for the Yeshiva Ohr Hamier to eliminate the approved construction of an on-site wastewater treatment plant and permit the construction of an on-site pump station for a sewer line and a gravel service road to access the pump station for property located at 141 Furnace Woods Road  as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Daniel A. Ciarcia, P.E. dated February 21, 2012.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the Board, David Steinmetz from the law firm of Zarin and Steinmetz representing the Yeshiva Ohr Hamier.  As we laid out in our letter to you of February 22nd, we are here tonight in connection with a slight modification of the previously approved Site Plan.  Going back two years, you will recall on the evening, that this Board adopted a neg. dec. and ultimately adopted a Site Plan Resolution and a Special Permit.  The Vice Chair said to us in his parting words, “don’t give up on the concept of a sewer connection.”  And, when I reported to you the last two times I’ve appeared in front of you in connection with extensions I explained to you that we have indeed been endeavoring to make that sewer connection.  I’m extremely pleased to tell you, as you’ve all seen from some recent documentation put in front of you, the county has approved the notion of an out-of-district user agreement.  Our concept would be to seek approval for and construct a pipe that would extend from the Yeshiva on Furnace Woods Road along Maple, up Lafayette to a specific location where we would connect into the county’s waste water system.  That line would be built entirely at the expense of the Yeshiva.  It would be provided as an out-of-district user pursuant to a written agreement that I’ve already received in draft form from the county.  You’ve seen the memo from the county approving that, authorizing it pursuant to a three-year permit with the potential of extending it beyond the capacity for our approval from the county would be limited to exactly what we had discussed with your Board, which is 23,000 gallons per day.  There would be no other capability of the Yeshiva expanding.  I know there’s been some e-mail traffic on that.  Everything else remains the same; the same number of students, the same program.  This will permit us to finally move forward with the demolition of Dodge City and the construction of the new dormitory building.  I know, at the work session, some of you have questioned what had taken place, if anything, over the last two years and I know there was some concerned expressed and I think fairly so.  Before I tell you what we’ve done I want to remind you that your Resolution that you originally approved prohibited us from obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy until we had a waste water treatment plant.  We would not be able to build the building, complete the building, and make any use of the building if we didn’t have a waste water treatment plant unless we had this alternative of the sewer lined up.  It has taken a considerable amount of time, effort and expense with some help from the Town to get to the point of marking the route along Lafayette, doing the necessary rock and soil borings, meeting with the county and securing the authorization to do this.  So, the good news is we finally, Mr. Bernard, can actually construct a sewer line.  The sewer line would be constructed in such a fashion that it would be capable of the public connecting to it should members of the public wish to do that, if they wish to do that, they’re going to deal with the Town, they’re not going to deal with us, they’re going to go to the Town and say “we’d like this to be a Town line.”  The county will review it for capability of it, ultimately becoming a Town line and that will be an issue that will be addressed, if at all, at some point in the future.  In terms of what we’ve done over the last two years, just so the Board is aware; three roofs have been replaced over the office building, the pool building, and the sanctuary, new septic fields have been improved and constructed with additional pumps and monitoring wells, many of the windows were replaced and water saving devices were installed in toilets, showers and faucets to provide for the minimalization of use of water that might ultimately either go into a sewage treatment plant, which will no longer need to be constructed or the sewer system.  A curtain drain was recently installed to try to control the flow in and around the septic fields.  Smoke detectors were replaced.  Much of the alarm system was actually redone and the Yeshiva is now in a position where we are most anxious to proceed with the actual sewer situation.  As far as the demolition of the Dodge City building; in preparation for the demolition, all of the utilities have been removed from that building and that building is now poised to go out to bid.  In fact, David Wald is here.  David Wald has been spearheading that with Rabi Rothberg to try to get various bids and once we know we are a green to move in the direction of the sewer the Dodge City building will be coming down, we hope imminently, and the sewer would be the next aspect of the project.  One thing I did not mention is in order to build the sewer we obviously need to have an on-site pump station.  We need to be able to pump the sewer effluent up to the point of connection to the county system.  There would be a small pump station building with pumps located at or about Furnace Woods Road.  We actually discussed with Ed in terms of where would best be located for access to the road and that’s basically the only real Site Plan change, just regrouping.  We’re here because we want to eliminate the waste water treatment plant; that was a building that was proposed to be constructed in the wetland buffer with a line going through the wetland buffer with a connection to the stream with a discharge of treated effluent into a stream.  None of that would need to take place.  We will eliminate that structure from the wetland buffer, we will instead be installing this small building that, if you have questions Dan Ciarcia can walk you through, I believe that Ed has had a chance to at least begin to take a look at those documents.  We located the driveway and the building in a place that we thought was most suitable that I believe staff thought was a prudent location and we need your Board to approve a modification of the Site Plan.  In my cover letter to you, and this is the last thing I really want to address, we went through the Resolution from January of 2010 and we thought there were a few specific conditions that related to the waste water treatment plant that no longer would pertain to this application were we to convert from the treatment plant to the sewer line and therefore we’re asking you to reconsider and to eliminate some of those conditions.  Other than that, we think this is really quite frankly a tremendous step in the right direction and a fairly simple, straightforward modification.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that I have a fairly good understanding of what you’re proposing here.  I do want to mention that we received some comments from residents in the general area and I’m not sure that you’ve addressed all of their concerns.  For example; one question here, this is from Joel Benedict.  This was addressed to our counsel Mr. Klarl, but of course the Board gets to see these questions.  They were concerned about whether or not, if there’s no extension of the Permit, quite frankly I don’t see that happening but if there is no extension, what happens after three years?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded if there’s no extension of the Permit then we have, essentially, a sewer to nowhere and obviously at that point we would need to go back and build a sewage treatment plant.  I will tell you Madame Chair and members of the Board that we’re very well aware of the three year duration.  In fact, I believe Mr. Benedict may have cited to you and I think the county certainly cited it in their memo, the reason it’s three years is it’s currently – that’s the legislation in the county, it’s a limitation.  So, I spent a fair amount of time discussing this with the county executive’s office and with the county Health Department and I was assured that never has the county refused to extend one of these Permits.  And, in fact, they may well, as they say in their memo, change it so that it would be capable of lasting or issuing a 30-year Permit.  They have very tight controls on these Permits that should make your Board, your staff and the community very comfortable.  The county is going to safeguard it and watch this.  It’s my client’s obligation to build it and to maintain it and the county is obviously going to collect a fee pursuant to the out-of-district user agreement.  My client is willing to take the risk of that three years because we don’t believe it to be an appreciable risk of any kind.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and another question I think they had was: can the residents of the area connect to this sewer?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded as I said in my introductory comments, the answer to that is yes and they will obviously contact the Town.  There is a way for them, physically to make that connection.  The pipe is constructed in such a fashion that it can be tapped into and other flows put into it and the county notified me that they wanted to review this as if it would be in the future a potential public line.  I notified Ed to that effect and there was no objection voiced as I understand it.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just a point of information, if another party was to connect to the force main, it would have to be by county regulations.  The entire system would have to be owned by the municipality.  That’s why Mr. Steinmetz had alluded to the fact that the improvements would be built to public standards.  As an FYI, I’ve had some inquiries from area residents regarding connecting to the system.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so they would be able to tap into the sewage within a three year probationary period or approval period?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and they would also, I understand what you’re saying David in terms of the re-approval that needs to take place but they’d be in the same…

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no, because at that point, correct me if I’m wrong, at that point it would need to become a public system so it would no longer be subject to the out-of-district user arrangement.  At that point, Ed you want to pick it up from there in terms of what your procedures would be?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded again, we’d have to establish some kind of a sewer district.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the Town would?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded the Town would yes, and that sewer district as a whole would be an out-of-district user unless the…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how does the three years play into that?  So, you establish the Town sewer district for them and the people that wish to connect but ultimately the county, after three years, can make some determination about…

Mr. David Steinmetz responded two things would have to happen as I understand it: 1) the county sewer district that the Town had initiated the extension of would be completed.  2) The Town would set up its own Town sewer system.  We would convey the line to the Town, it becomes a municipal line.  Once it becomes a municipal line, there is no out-of-district – it’s in the district so the three year notion, the Permit, all of that is done, it’s now a municipal sewer connection it’s not a private sewer connection.  What we’re constructing is a private sewer connection to service one particular user pursuant to a Permit issued by the county.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so ultimately the Town would have to take on the sewer for others to connect into it?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded if the Town chose to do so, absolutely.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and also they’d have to be, if I’m not mistaken, a majority of residents within that immediate area – let’s say only half of them would want to go in, isn’t a certain percentage have to…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded exactly, it’s something that the Town Board would have to weigh.  Obviously, we wouldn’t have a sewer district with one or two participants.  As we did ten years or so ago, petition the entire area to get their feelings.  If there was an overwhelming desire to connect into the system then we would form the district.  But, again, that district though would not – not right at this point in time, would not be within the Peekskill sanitary sewage district.  Let’s differentiate between the municipal district and the county district. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated just on Mr. Foley’s question though, the situation here is it’s a zero cost district.  In other words, the line’s already built.  There’s no bonding, the concept of having to go out to bond and have a number of folks who might vote against it, it’s already there.  The only thing that’s covered in this district is maintenance and upkeep of an already constructed sewer line.

Mr. Robert Foley stated also, the individuals who may choose to connect along that stretch of Lafayette or whatever streets they would have to pay their construction cost and if there is no on the line that you would be building, if there no connectors or plugs or if there are connectors, whatever that term is they use, along the way then it becomes more costly to the individual home owner to connect into the trunk line or whatever you want to call it.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s right, unlike a gravity system, this is a force main.  There would be no stubs brought to the property line.  Anybody that would like to connect into this force main would have to connect, again, from their home directly to the force main.  Of course that would involve a pump system at the individual home.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it would be a costly thing for the individual.  It’s not as easy – it’s good that the availability will be there but it’s not as simple, in my view, from past experiences with other sewer connections.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it would likely be what’s called a low-pressure sewer system turned into a low-pressure sewer system similar to what we have at Red Oaks where they have these E1 units which are, again, for lack of a better word, a mini pump station with some backup capacity in the event of a power outage.  But again, that would be the home owner’s responsibility to maintain.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it would be a little more complicated than a sewer connection of an existing line by individual home owners. For instance, like in the north east quadrant (of Town) the Lockwood Road area where I live.  That was simple but we had to do separate man holes which were costly at every interval…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated for what it’s worth Mr. Foley and members of the Board, Mr. Santucci did something very similar to what we’re talking about in the Town of Yorktown recently.  He constructed a new sewer line in front of a number of homes that were on again septic systems, entirely at his cost, 66 properties had the capability of tying into it, 59 of them have already tied into it.  The expense, according to Mr. Ciarcia, in this situation for this type of connection, probably somewhere in the neighborhood of $5,000 to $10,000 for each home to make that connection.  By doing that, they come off their septic system, they no longer have to repair, maintain, upgrade, service their tank etc.  That’s an issue that obviously folks can consider on their own in the future.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I just wanted to point out that while it’s good, it may not be as simple and if they get together, if there’s a larger group (to help defray costs….)
Mr. David Steinmetz stated nothing in life is simple but that’s certainly a nice option to have.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I have a question about – I think I heard Ed say that you’d have to have a separate pump station that each home would be connected…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded they would have individual lift stations at the homes themselves, just like they have at Red Oaks.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how costly is that?  

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that’s part of the 5 to 10.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so Dave, you say you want a 23,000 gallons per day, what’s the capacity of a sewer line and what would the capacity need to be if everybody hooked in?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that I have to have Dan address.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated what we did was the pipe we made bigger than it needs to be for their facility and just configure the pumps so they run at the minimum velocity that’s acceptable and the idea would be by doing that it allows a lot more capacity for these E1 pumps to connect along the way.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked have you estimated the capacity of every home connected?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded it’s approximately in the order of around 75 I think.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked 75,000 gallons per day?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded no, about 75 homes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what would the capacity need to be to capture all the sewage for all those homes?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded the thing, the pump station is designed to size the pumps and so forth and then the force main, it just at some point the velocities will get too high and nobody else will be able to connect but 75 is at a minimum what can connect to this line at the size of theirs.  We’re going to provide a design that will detail the situation of the flow at the Yeshiva itself as well as how many of these low-pressure sewer pumps it could accommodate.  The other thing I should mention too is because the pump station itself is being designed to the standards that the county Health Department requires, that’s another option that’s available that people in proximity to the actual pump station on the property, down the road if the Town were accepted, they could connect by gravity into that facility.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess my only point is I don’t know if you take into account what’s there also but there may be additional building that takes place along Lafayette or Maple perhaps.  I just want to make sure that if this thing goes ahead that the capacity is there for the potential of 100% of the people who want to pay to hook in can and will be able to.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded there’s a balance that has to be maintained too because what’ll happen is if the pipes get too big then you run the risk of not having enough velocity to keep the pipe clean and then you start to run into problems like that.  We tried to come up with a reasonable expectation as to what the number of potential connections would be.  The other thing, which I should say also, is that there’s also a chance that you can also adjust how the pumps operating the Yeshiva themselves to allow for more connections down the road.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated in short, what Dan’s saying, is a four inch line is the largest line that the county will allow for a facility that’s discharging 23,000 gallons a day.  A five inch line would be too big and as Dan mentioned the velocity of the sewage that’s being conveyed through the line would be less in what is required.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we could have constructed a three inch line but we were asked to size it at four inches to provide for this future accommodation should it be used.  My understanding, from all the engineers both the Town’s, ours, and the county, as Ed just said, the four inch works in terms of hydraulics.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so with your assessment of the potential future use, whether it’s existing homes or other potential build out, and I don’t know what other build out developments may occur in that area, you think it’s a fair assessment of – in other words, in the future, ten years from now you wouldn’t be locking out others or at some point reach a point where other new homes or whatever, can’t connect in?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded again, Dan had mentioned that the capacity of the four inch line would be 75 homes.  Is that correct Dan?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded more or less.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked how many homes are along the 7,000 foot line?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded 75.

Mr. Robert Foley asked those are existing?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how many?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded approximately 75 is what we count along the route.

Mr. Robert Foley asked how many future homes may be…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated what they’re saying then is the line can handle the capacity for all the homes along the line.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked speaking of the road, could you describe what that route is so we understand it?  I know where the pump house is on the lower left hand corner.

 Mr. David Steinmetz stated you’re coming out of the site along Furnace Woods…
Mr. Robert Foley asked is it more than a mile David?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes it is.  It’s 7,000 linear feet Mr. Foley.  Right here, at this corner of the Yeshiva’s property, we would have the pump station with a small driveway.  It would come out onto Furnace Woods.  It would make a left and come along Maple to this point here where it picks up Lafayette and then runs up Lafayette to Ridge.  7,000 linear feet, four inch pipe constructed entirely within the municipal right-of-way.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated there’s a case in point.  You have Sampson where we just saw a proposal for five homes or six homes that don’t exist today that would be in addition to the 75 that you’re counting as existing today.  Not to say it’s approved.  I’m not saying, by any means, I’m not saying we’re close to approval on that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the fact of the matter is, we have the ability to construct a private line and we’ve been encouraged to construct a private line.  We’re prepared to and proposing to try to solve some other folk’s issues along the way at the same time and what a wonderful incidental benefit. The flip side is, I hear what you’re saying Mr. Kessler, I just don’t know whether – that’s certainly not one particular property owner’s obligation.  The good news is that you have 75 aging septic systems, give or take, along the way.  Maybe there are some new things as well.  I leave it to others to try to engineer how they may tap in and make benefit.  There’s a four inch line that theoretically will be running up that road and my understanding is, from an environmental standpoint, that benefits not only the stream in the area on the Yeshiva property that we spent a lot of time talking about, eliminating the DEC SPDES discharge Permit but it also eliminates potential for aging and failing septic systems along the way to persist. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked and the 75 that you’ve cited, they’re all facing on either side of that route?  It doesn’t include any side streets – I know a lot of the properties are right on the road there and I don’t know how many side roads are in there.  It doesn’t include those right?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded I’ll make a point here that may help with this.  One of the things that’s a little unusual about this arrangement, it’s sort of a hybrid system, in that we have a regular duplex pump station like you typically see, plus these low-pressure sewer pumps.  The thing is, the low-pressure sewers connecting, using a four inch main can handle more than 75, and we can address that, but when you design these low-pressure sewer systems it’s actually a statistical thing because you don’t assume they’re all running at the same time.  There’s some reasonable amount that you assume run when you design a low-pressure system.  What comes into the mix now is that periodically you’re going to have these big pumps kick on.  In theory, when those big pumps aren’t running more of these can run and, in fact, the way they’re designed they’re actually designed in a way that the low-pressure pumps, if too many of them are running at once they just time out and when things calm down a little bit they just cycle and come back in.  Before we get too hung up on the 75 I think we can probably demonstrate that you could do even more than that and it sounds like that’s something you’d like us to study a little further.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated exactly.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record, the Sampson subdivision is connecting to a sewer but going a different direction than the Cortlandt Estates.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked on Matasac?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, there’s an easement that takes you out the back that takes you to the neighboring Cortlandt Estates subdivision.  Right where the word Greenlawn is, that big parcel, and they’re taking the sewer back to where the RD is for the road there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked then most of the rest of Lafayette appears to be, at least that portion, built out.  Some properties that are smaller may need the sewer connection and some slopping on the side of the Dickey Brook on the western side.  Overall it is a good thing but there are costs involved to those new connectors.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there any other comment?

Mr. Robert Foley stated on two other issues on that e-mail from the resident.  As far as the Town will look carefully at any impacts from a historic or scenic roadway aspect along Lafayette during construction?

Mr. Ed Vergano asked Dan, how many trees are going to be taken down during the installation of this line?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded because of the route we have to follow, in fact, on Furnace Woods and Maple we have no choice but being in the middle of pavement because of the existing water mains.  On Lafayette we flip flop back and forth but essentially we remain in the pavement.  There’s some areas where we’re just off slightly to the shoulder, but for the most part we’re not proposing to take out any trees down, we’re staying in the pavement.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what about the stone wall aspect to the historic scenic roadways?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded for the most part the stone walls are people’s property lines so we don’t want to go near that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated as I mentioned earlier in connection with the scenic road, article 188 or section 188, we’re not touching the streetscapes, the vistas and the private property, this is all within municipal right-of-way.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the last question was; would the public have the opportunity to comment on the approval of the construction?  I don’t know.  The last question on this e-mail.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated do we have to have a public hearing on this is the question and should we have a public hearing on this?

Mr. Robert Foley responded yes, there would have to be a public hearing so the answer would be yes.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m not certain that a public hearing is required for this.

Mr. John Klarl stated I think it’s not mandated but the Board was going to discuss it tonight.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we had some discussion at our work session that had to do with how we would handle this Resolution.  We already have one in effect and you want us to simply eliminate certain particular conditions.  I don’t know whether that would actually do the trick.  Maybe we would want to revise it that way.  Maybe we would want to create a new Resolution that would tie in this with the other things that we had already said so you’d have – not really striking out things in one Resolution but sort of looking at the Resolution and maybe thinking how to put the two together in another new Resolution.  We’ll have a new number.  That’s what I’m saying.  I would like for you and I think that could work.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine.

Ms. Loretta Taylor continued and I think that that could work.  We also discussed the need to have a sense of your vision of the development, the progress, how you envision this from this point on, from the construction of the pump station and the demolition of Dodge, etc, try to sort of give us a timeframe or timeline as you see this going forward.  I think we all were pretty much in agreement on that.  You could actually begin with some of the things that you actually have done which you sort of reported on already and then give us a sense of going forward how do you see this evolving?  We’re going to refer this back to staff and you guys can have some conversation on that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we can answer that next time.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we would love to have it for the next meeting.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated let’s be clear here, are you going to come back and give us a recommendation of whether there should be a public hearing or not?  Is that the intent here?

Mr. John Klarl responded whatever the Board directs us to do.  I thought I just heard right now that the Chair would like us to discuss it with the applicant for whatever direction they want to give us.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know that we absolutely have to have a…

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s not mandated.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated because sewer was the way we wanted you to go to begin with and so now you’re coming back and saying you have a proposal for a sewer and you’ve gotten the county to kind of agree with that and I don’t know what the purpose of the hearing would be, the public hearing.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we don’t disagree.  We made the application by letter application because our understanding was this was almost effectively a ministerial change.  Everything is taking place off site as, effectively, a road opening Permit with the exception of the fact that I’m eliminating the most significant intrusion into the wetland and the wetland buffer i.e.: the prior proposed waste water treatment plant and now we’re building a very small building for pumps that technically, as Chris and Ed brought to our attention, sits in a steep slope adjacent to Furnace Woods road.  Am I correct?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, but David, part of this – when we talked about it at our work session about this staging and what’s going to happen when, a big part of this is what happens to the septic system and how you effectively close it down.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we’re already required under your Resolution, Mr. Kessler, to decommission it specific.  You’ve already drafted conditions on that.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and nothing changes with regard to that?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no, not at all.  We still have to decommission the septic system the same way we would have done so in our connection with the waste water treatment plant.  You’ve already indicated that we’ve got to close them out in a certain way and we must do so.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked how long do you expect the road construction to take once you get started?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded this is going to depend ultimately on the contractor who gets it but it’s probably, on the fast end, about six months perhaps as long as a year, depending upon when we start and run into winter and so forth.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated obviously only small sections would be addressed at any given time so it’s not like there is a 7,000 foot construction – it’s small pieces, incrementally.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked who has oversight over that construction?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded the Town does.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the Town does?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s got to be built for public use so in that sense – I mean, they’re going to use it privately but what I’m saying is it has to be under the Town because the Town eventually might get this.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded exactly.

Mr. John Klarl stated in the Town right-of-way.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’re building this in the Town’s property.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated they would need a road opening Permit.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated a minor point but we would like you to provide some information on the Steep Slope Permit.  It’s a minimal amount of disturbance and the steep slope disturbance for the driveway to get to the pump station is in lieu of more disturbance to the wetland buffer, it’s coming to the pump station from a different direction but you’d have to go back to the Steep Slope Ordinance and answer some questions to see whether the Board was going to grant the Permit.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so my understanding Madame Chair is you want us to work with staff on answering some of these questions and seeing if there’s some work we can do to help them on putting a new number on a Resolution and changing the Resolution.  Then, we would ask to come back next month to answer these questions and see if we can square some of this away.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and we would expect that timeline from you.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine, I’ve got that right here.

Mr. Robert Foley asked did we resolve on the idea of a public hearing?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded we haven’t.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m in a sense sort of guided by what is legally we’re mandated to do.  If we’re not mandated to do it and they’re not making any major changes to what we’ve approved except that they’re now getting rid of the septic, which we all wanted them to do in the first place, I don’t know what is the point.

Mr. John Bernard stated if we recall, the major discussions during the public hearings that we had on this application were concerned with water quality in the wetlands and extending on down behind school properties, etc.  With the proposed sewer line, that obviates that entire discussion.  There will be no effluent into the wetland or into Blue Mountain or behind the other homes or into any school property.  That’s why we originally wanted to cleave to a sewer line if we could.  It looks like that’s possible now.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m going to have to ask our counsel to give us the final word on that.

Mr. John Klarl stated that’s what we did with, Madame Chair, what you suggested is a good suggestion that we discuss it at staff level.  We haven’t talked about this in great detail at our last work session.  We discussed it with the applicant and the applicant’s professionals and then bring back a recommendation next month and you can vote next month or give us direction as to whether or not you want us to have a public hearing.  We’d be happy to look into the issues involved.  There’s obviously the neighbors raised a number of issues to be reviewed.

Mr. Robert Foley stated when you discuss it with staff level consider at least, look at the possible impacts to the neighbors, in other words, with the sewer connection.

Mr. John Klarl stated that would be a major part of…

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we refer this application to staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you.
PB 1-11      d.
Application of Croton Realty & Development Inc. for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 27 lot major cluster subdivision, with a recreation parcel, of a 35.9 acre parcel of property located on the east side of Croton Avenue, approximately 400 feet north of Furnace Dock Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Subdivision Plan for Hanover Estates, Alternate 9” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin III, P.E. dated October 19, 2011 (see prior PB 14-83).

Mr. David Steinmetz stated representing Croton Realty.  While Tim is bringing up the plans I’m going to be very brief.  What we were hoping to do tonight is simply revisit with your Board the application that was originally filed.  Remind you that we have been through a charrette process as encourage by the Town.  My clients and our team, we believe, cooperated fully with the Town, the community, and the neighbors.  We had a very productive series of sessions that resulted in a written charrette report prepared by the Town’s hired professional consultants on this.  As you know, last month I had asked you to refer this to the Town Board to request cluster authorization.  My understanding is that your Board wanted to go through the process a little further, understand the subdivision, kind of take a few steps back to remember where you have been.  We fully understand that and that’s what Tim’s going to do.  We’re going to walk you through the conventional subdivision layout, why and how we went through the process, remind you of the lot count formula that Tim had done originally and how we ended up at the proposed cluster.  We’ll walk you through that and we’re prepared to answer any questions.  We would very much like, at the earliest possible date, to find out from your Board and the Town Board whether or not a cluster is a viable option for this property as recommended by the charrette.
Mr. Tim Cronin stated it’s our office that prepared the plans for the Hanover Estates subdivision.  To bring you up-to-date as to where we are and how we got here requires us to go back in time a little bit.  We made our initial submissions to the Planning Board February 14th, 2011 for a placement on the March 1st, 2011 Planning Board agenda.  At that meeting the Planning Board declared itself its intent to become the lead agent and that was pretty much where it stood from that meeting. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think that was at the April meeting, not at the March meeting.

Mr. Tim Cronin asked was it?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.

Mr. John Klarl stated you’re both right.  On March 1st, the Planning Board indicated intent to be lead agent, at the April 5th meeting the Planning Board declared itself lead agency.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated as part of the standard practice by the Town, this project was circulated to staff and the various departments and on March 21st 2011 there’s a letter from John Palmietto, the Director of Recreation to Chris requesting that land be set aside on this parcel here for the use as a Town recreation facility.  My client realized that in an attempt to benefit the Town as well as his partners in this project, we requested a meeting with the Town Supervisor and members of her staff which we did have on March 29th, 2011.  At this meeting, it was discussed the possibility of the inclusion of a recreation field.  It was also suggested that the applicant proceed with a charrette which is a planning tool that brings in interested stakeholders into the discussion process.  In this case it was property owners in the vicinity of the proposed project as well as various individuals who were involved in various aspects with the Town.  It was agreed to at that time, on March 29th, to have the charrette and my applicant agreed with that.  We then sent a letter to the Planning Board in April, probably for discussion at the May meeting to hold up on any further SEQRA actions with this project which this Board willingly did.  In the summer of 2011 nothing really happened and it was suggested and agreed to that we wait until the school season started, people’s schedule were back to normal this way it would better guarantee and better ensure we would have full participation with the adjacent property owners and a higher likelihood that other interested individuals would also be more likely to attend.  On September 14th, 2011 we had our first charrette meeting.  At that meeting, the facilitators, those hired by the Town, paid for by us: Anthony Russo and Michelle Robins of AKRF discussed the process.  Rosemary Boyle was there representing the Town and at that meeting we discussed the initial subdivision plan as well as the three alternatives that were included with that subdivision plan and they’re up on the screen now, I’ll try to bounce around a little bit.  Our initial plan was this one here.  An alternative to that was alternative number 1 which was this one – this one here is the original plan which showed a through road from Croton Avenue to connect into the existing right-of-way on Apple Hill Drive right here, that’s the right-of-way we’d be connecting to the road coming down onto Croton Avenue.  There were houses off of that proposed road as well as a number of houses off of Croton Avenue with driveways and then a small cul-de-sac proposed off of our proposed new road.  That was our initial plan showing 25 lots.  An alternative to that was to eliminate the tie-in to the Apple Hill subdivision and leave that up to the Board whether or not they would like to have an emergency access or whether they’d like to have the through road, keeping in mind that the Town policy is generally to not have cul-de-sacs.  We decided to show this as an alternative realizing that it would probably – a through road onto Apple Hill would probably not be seen as something that they would want.  Alternative number 2 is the same as 1 except with the emergency access and then alternative number 3 was an extension of the right-of-way off of Apple Hill to a smaller development with this area here, the open space which is generally the area that’s already been disturbed with paddocks and some of the corrals as being sold as a horse farm.  This option really never panned out.  There was no desire for anybody to come in and buy this property so although 10 lots was presented it was with the understanding or with the possibility of a sale of a large portion of the property which just didn’t happen.  These four plans were discussed at the charrette, the first meeting on September 14th we were asked to put alternatives together at that meeting for the next charrette meeting but prior to the next charrette meeting on September 24th there was a site walk for the property where members of the charrette and neighbors walked the property for probably, I think we were out there for close to three hours and I’ll show you where we walked.  This is the 25 lot plan – we pulled in where the existing offices are, parked here, generally walked up through the area where things have been disturbed pretty well, walked along this ridge line, got a sense as to the change in grade from the upper area to Croton Avenue.  From there we looped around the rear property line, walked through this right-of-way, came out onto Apple Hill, had a little bit of a discussion there with the residents of Apple Hill who were there, walked back in and then I think we sort of meandered in this direction and it was pretty heavily bushed over.  I don’t think we walked along this property line.  I think it was more or less through here, came down, went down along this stone wall, which marks the eastern property line, walked up through a field and then out through some of the existing buildings that were there and then back down to where we started which was right here.  That was the site walk on the 24th.  At the October 12th charrette, which was our second meeting, we discussed…
Mr. Steven Kessler asked just to be clear, so at the first meeting you had the original plan and the three alternatives and none of them had a ball field in them?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded correct.  The reason the ball field came up was, I believe in large part due to the memo written by the Recreation Department after our initial submission and after staff circulated our package to various Town Departments. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so that wasn’t presented until the next meeting in terms of the ball field?
Mr. Tim Cronin responded it wasn’t discussed at the first meeting but at the second meeting yes and that’s the plans you’re going to see here.  The primary plan in alternatives 1, 2, and 3 were the first charrette meeting.  Alternatives 4, 5, 6, and 7 were then discussed at the second charrette meeting.  There was some concern by the residents of Apple Hill to try to reduce and eliminate any connection into the Apple Hill property and we tried to do that with some of the alternatives here but on 4 you can see, we have the first alternative with the ball field, and this is a relatively small one.  This would be a small sided soccer field perhaps for U9 or U10 age group.  You can see the fields here with access off the existing driveway with a roadway cut through the slope that goes from Croton Avenue up to the flat spot up on top and this is a cluster option here.  One of the things that came out during the charrette meetings was the need for us, if we were to come off of Croton Avenue, to disturb the steep sloped area here.  I believe if there was a strong enough rationale presented by the applicant that this is something that I guess the Town would be willing to entertain.  Also, with the cluster option this would require public sewer and a tie into the Emery Ridge subdivision, the pump station’s right here.  We actually have a dialogue with Mr. Vergano indicating that there is capacity available in the sewer system to handle the flows that we would expect to be generated from this project.  This is one alternative. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked that was the first one with the sports field, number 4?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded the sports field showed up at the second charrette meeting.  All the alternatives have now the sports field.  Here’s another one, you can see it’s a cluster development.  Again, the small sports field.

Mr. Robert Foley asked which alternative is that?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded it’s 5 I believe.

Mr. Robert Foley stated these are in early October. 

Mr. Tim Cronin responded October 12th.  There’s 5.  Here’s number 6, it eliminates the construction of the road through the steep slope along Croton Avenue, takes advantage of the existing right-of-way on Apple Hill and has our houses pretty much come in on grade to the relatively flat portion of our site and again the ball field down by the existing office buildings.  Here’s 7 right here – again, all these are cluster developments.  I think once we go into the desire to have the ball field as well as keeping our lots off the slope, cluster is I think the only way I see this working.  Here we would come in, pretty much the new road close to where the existing driveway is, our lots and then these sports field up adjacent to the houses on Apple Hill and access to the sports field coming in off of Apple Hill.  I think that, and I’m sure if they’re here they can second that, the residents on Apple Hill were not in favor of this plan here showing the sports field coming off of their road nor were they really in favor of the subdivision coming again off of their road.  I think Apple Hill, and you’ll get a sense of that and I think you have letters to that effect as well.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the size of the sports field on these later alternatives was smaller than the first submission?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded on October 12th I believe the sports field are all generally the same and I think that would be enough for a small sided soccer game, U9 or U10.  The field may be…
Mr. Robert Foley asked 180 by 300?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded that’s the big field.  That’s the big one.  That’s for U11 – that would be for U12, 11 would be an 11 game.
Mr. Robert Foley asked then it got reduced to 150…

Mr. Tim Cronin responded well, it started off as a small field but that’s got limitations.  You really can’t get a – once you get to 12 year olds, which is 6th grade, they need a field that’s bigger than that.  This would really be limited to say the little kids and again, it’s up to the Town.  If the Town wants a big field, it’s the big, they want the small field.  They don’t want a field.  We’re really not married to any of these.  Based on the dialogue that took place at the October 12th meeting, we put together two more alternatives: alternatives 9 and 10 which were presented at the last charrette meeting on November 17th.  

Mr. David Steinmetz asked can you can explain to him why you prepared 9 and 10, in other words could you just do that, you did that because of what took place at that October charrette?
Mr. Tim Cronin stated as you can see there was concern raised by a number of the members of the charrette about the impact our project would have on Apple Hill which some of our alternatives did and about the impact our road would have coming up through the slope on from Croton Avenue, which it does.

Mr. Foley stated across from Sassinoro.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded across from Sassinoro.  Actually, during the process because of the traffic on Croton Avenue, many in attendance were wondering if we could put a light at a new road intersection with Sassinoro/Croton Avenue.  Anthony Russo with AKRF did the study on that and indicated that the traffic through this area did not warrant the placement of a traffic light.  If the Town desires that we come down through this slope, there would not be a traffic light here, that’s what his analysis indicated back – and I think he presented that at the November 17th meeting.  Based on the concerns of the new road adverse impact on the slope – this slope here is very similar to the slope that’s in front of Apple Hill so although you’re seeing a 50 or 60 foot wide right-of-way line and pavement, the extent of the disturbance on this road would be very similar to that which is what you see on Apple Hill.  It would probably be proposed grades 150-200 feet wide.  It would be visible.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked would it be less than the Sassinoro grades when they built Sassinoro road?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded Sassinoro is pretty flat.  Relatively speaking it’s flat.  Sassinoro may be what 4 or 5% and we’re talking something here that’s going to be 12 or 14.  This is as steep as Apple Hill or this would be as steep.  This comes in pretty much flat on grade, this is very steep.  Trying to take into account those concerns – now, keep in mind some people were interested or concerned about the impact of the slopes on Croton Avenue, others were concerned about the size of the field or the field, some were concerned about cluster.  I don’t think there was any plan ever submitted, and I don’t think it’s possible to submit a plan that would make everybody happy with all aspects of it.  Some wanted this, some wanted that.  So, what we tried to do to take what we heard over and over again as the concerns impact on Apple Hill, impact on the slope and come up with these two last alternatives.  Alternative number 9 which is the one that it seemed at the last charrette meeting the majority of the people in attendance were in agreement with, has a larger sports field, proposed road coming in pretty close to where the existing driveway is, it’s a boulevard type road which gives us similar to what Sassinoro is, the degree of safety in that if the road’s going to close it’s really unlikely you’ll have both sides of that boulevard closed.  We have the boulevard entrance, a loop coming around so there’s no cul-de-sacs, houses clustered within this area and then the sports field – we can appreciate the people on Apple Hill not wanting a sports field in their backyard but then we also feel the same way.  Although it’s nice to have a sports field in your neighborhood, if people are driving by your house on Saturday and Sunday morning to go play soccer, lacrosse, field hockey, whatever it is, it’s not that pleasant so we decided that it would be a good idea to keep the field down close to Croton Avenue to give some degree of privacy between for the people living here and the cars coming in to make use of the sports field and this is an option.  You can see we have some open space here.  We have some open space up on top.  The majority of our development is off the steep slope area which is now the open space which preserves the corridor along Croton Avenue…
Mr. David Steinmetz stated you can buffer along the Apple Hill line.
Mr. Tim Cronin responded there’s a buffer here, 25 foot buffer but the actual distance between the house is somewhere around 200 feet.  That’s alternative 9 and that’s the one at the meeting where most people were in favor of.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but two of the lots: 27 and 14 are fairly close to the sports field.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes, that’s true but if and when they buy those houses it’s going to be on maps that there’s going to be a field there.  That is correct.  And then alternative 10 shows a little bit smaller field and that’s something, again, we’ll have to hear from the Town what size field if they want a field at all, what size field, what size parking and so on that they want and then this is a cluster development.  This was the other plan that was looked at at the last charrette meeting and if I had to say I would guess that it may have been 75/25 alternative 9, maybe 85/15 alternative 9 over alternative 10.  It wasn’t 100% but it was clear that number 9 was the one that most people felt was the way to go.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I was not at the first charrette meeting I was only at the second and third charrette sessions.  Tim did a very good job of walking you through.  What I want you to know, at the second charrette there’s no question that the predominant discussion was: “what do we do about Apple Hill?  No connection?  Primary road connection or emergency access?”  And the other portion of discussion at the second charrette was the value of open space and could there be some recreational component?  There were some who spoke very passionately about the need for recreational space on this side of Town and there was a discussion about the cooperation or lack thereof with the Lakeland School District.  One thing that needs to be very clear is our client did not come into this and said they need to do a ball field.  We want to have a ball field in this subdivision.  I will tell you, having sat through the second and the third charrette, I feel like we were encouraged to strongly entertain it.  As Tim said, we were brought to a point where we needed to decide would we feel it was better for the applicant to have a ball field in the front or in the rear of the subdivision if the applicant was asked to construct the ball field?

Mr. Robert Foley asked encouraged by all the members of the charrette?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded by the charrette in general.  Bob, it wasn’t that everybody sat and took a vote on everything but there was a very open and honest discussion between and among the charrette.  It was, not everybody agreed on everything but it was cooperative, it was open, it was honest and the one thing I want to kind of correct Tim on, my client did not run this charrette.  We were sitting at the table.  This charrette was run by professional charrette mediator, coordinators and they took great pains at the end of the third charrette to go around the table and to really attempt to achieve consensus.  Consensus is not unanimous endorsement of every aspect.  Consensus is on balance taking everything into account after three different sessions and nine different plans; where do we shake out?  Tim’s right, there were a couple of people who probably thought maybe option, alternative 10 might benefit them in some way or benefit some issue that they had on balance, unquestionably the consensus was eliminate the disturbance along the slope here, eliminate the geometric intersection opposite Sassinoro, especially after Anthony Russo concluded that the intersection did not meet traffic warrants and would not result in a traffic signal, that the notion of having this intersection in here seem to fall off the table across the board.  There was a lot of discussion about having a recreational component on Hanover knowing that there was also a recreational component – everybody remember, Cortlandt Ridge, Val constructed that basketball court and the recreational component on the opposite side of the street where people would be walking back and forth.  All these things were really openly discussed.  Anthony and Michelle took great pains at the end of that meeting to go around the table, they took input from everybody on the charrette and they took input from those members of the public who were interested enough to come to these charrettes and sit in the back row and they took some comments from them as well.  At the end, this is what they came away as the consensus endorsement and they wrote their report based upon that.  Having said that, I know Jim Creighton from the Recreation Committee is here.  He wasn’t at the work session that I was at two meetings ago where I know you received letters and some testimony from one of the charrette members who suddenly had information that there were folks that did not endorse the sports field and I sat through that work session and I was extremely surprised because I went and spent six hours at two different charrette meetings and I know what I saw and I know what I witnessed and I know what my client effectively capitulated on.  Without a bad pun, we really don’t have a horse in this race despite the fact that there was a horse application originally. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked weren’t there letters in the charrette report from those members?  Not just one person at a meeting of our Board or work session a month ago.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded some of those letters Bob, I believe post date the – I believe actually all of the letters you’re referring to post date the November charrette session.  Just so you know, I was there, you weren’t, others were there.  I know what people said at the meeting and I know what seems to have been generated in writing subsequently.  People have every right to do what they want, they can voice their opinion, this is an open process.  It’s going to be an open process all the way through.  I just want you to know, we didn’t imagine stuff, we know what took place, the Town hired two wonderful professionals who stood before you that work session two meetings ago, they told you, I mean I saw the looks on Anthony’s and Michelle’s faces when this started to happen two work sessions back.  My client and I talked about it in the hallway afterward how surprised we were to see this play out.  You all, the Town, the Planning Board, your professional staff, you figure out what you want to do.  I know we listened to the recreation folks and their data and their information and we tried to be responsive.  I don’t want to see my client get caught up in the middle of this battle because they’re trying to do the right thing and provide an amenity to the Town.  We can build this subdivision with more open space.  We can build this subdivision with a field that some of the members of the community will use.  Let us know what you want.  That should not hold up our ability to move forward with the evaluation of this development.  That should not impede our ability to go to the Town Board and get cluster authorization, should you decide you want to recommend it.  To me, that’s a detail that you all can work out as we go through the process.  I know there are people in this Town that passionately want to see a field there.  The good news for you, you don’t have a developer sitting in front of you saying “I refuse to put a field on my subdivision.”  Let it shake out.  You want to hear from Jim?  I understand you heard from him at some length at your work session in terms of the data, the issues, and the way the charrette played out.  I just wanted you to know from the applicant’s standpoint, the way we believe the charrette ended in November.  We were not surprised when we saw the report generated in writing with the endorsement of alternative 9 and I was surprised at the presentation that took place at the work session but such is life.
Mr. Robert Foley asked just to make sure you understand what I’m saying.  The charrette report we received and looked at at that meeting you’re talking about, when it supposedly you’re saying it first came up about objections to the ball field, the committee comments, appendix III in that report from January it seems that some of those letters, if not the majority seem to be questioning the ball field then.  So, I don’t know what you meant, what you just said.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded it came after – Bob, I think what we’re missing each other on, I sat through the November meeting.  The November meeting, there was a consensus discussion.  I watched for 45 minutes, as your professionals went around the table.  You don’t have to believe me.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m not saying I don’t believe you…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we all know what we saw take place at that meeting and the letters all took place after that.  The report was prepared two months later.

Mr. Robert Foley stated after the meeting but before the report came out because they’re in the report.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated correct.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated between alternative 2 and 3, you were only going to go down to 10 lots if you could sell off the other part of the property.  How did you get to 27 lots in 9?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded thank you, I actually wanted to feed that question to Tim.  I think one of the things that we used, because I know the Board’s asked us this question, could you explain the lot count formula, what you did and why we went from 27 to 25 and now we’re at 27?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded as you’re all aware, the Town has, as part of their subdivision requirements that you perform a lot count analysis which, generally speaking, takes the entire parcel area, in this case 35.9 acres, and deducts from that areas that it considers significant or environmentally sensitive and it’s right down here.  There’s the equation there: gross parcel area, taking away the wetlands, the buffer area, fresh water wetlands, fresh water wetlands buffer, steep slopes and FB 100 year flood boundary and 10% for roads.  You take the gross, deduct from that the various environmentally constraint components, divide that by 40,000 square feet which is the zoning district which we’re in and you come up with a number of lots which is the maximum number of lots that you can put on that piece of property not necessarily by finding a buildable lot for a house and a septic and a driveway and so on, but just based on the mathematical equation.  We could probably have fit more lots on this property, however, we were constrained with the 27.

Mr. John Klarl asked was your lot count formula verified?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded I don’t think it was but that can be done, that’s fine.  So, we have 27 lots.  The initial submission was for 25 lots, however, when we got into the possibility of doing a cluster project here, a single family house on a ½ acre, 2/3 of an acre lot has a certain value which is what the cluster would provide.  On a 40,000 square foot, or essentially a builder’s acre lot, the parcel would have slightly more value.  In order to try and keep my client sort of in a whole position from a financial standpoint, I believe that two additional lots would help him maintain that balance.  If he’s going to give open space to the Town, 17 acres or so for the ball fields, so on and so on, I thought that, well, if we’re doing this for the Town possibly, then I think we should also then try to show the 27 lots which were permitted by zoning.  That’s why the application changed from 25 lots to 27 and that’s a plan which was submitted earlier this week, maybe today.  You just got it so nobody’s really had a real chance to look at it.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked is the converse true?  If you don’t do the ball field you can do less than 27?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded 25.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked without the ball field?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded right, but it wouldn’t be a cluster it would be a…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so that’s the proposal?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes.

Mr. John Bernard asked Tim, wouldn’t there be a cost differential in clustering versus standard build out?  Cost differential for infrastructure?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded maybe but if you remember alternative 9 had a loop road.  The road is probably longer for the cluster than it was for the conventional and we had a lot of lots coming off of Croton Avenue for the conventional.  So, the infrastructure’s there for those 6 or 7 lots infrastructure’s there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think we only got an electronic version of the 27 lots.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes, just today.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right, just so the Planning Board members don’t go looking through their stuff.   They don’t have a hard copy.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded no, you don’t have this.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we had gotten one at the last meeting?  Is that what you’re talking about?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded no, you didn’t get 27.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the only time you’ve seen 27 would be on the screen tonight.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded we actually had a meeting with staff last week and the question you’re raising about 27 lots was something that was brought up at that meeting on Wednesday or Thursday and it was suggested: you know you’d better put something together to show how you went from 25 to 27.  From Thursday until today we put together this 27 lot plan.  It hasn’t been scrutinized.  It hasn’t been looked at.  It hasn’t been verified but certainly this is information that we can just provide you do auto cad file to a pdf file.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the 27 lot one that was in the charrette report, or at least the presentation, that’s different then?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded that’s a cluster.  This is 27 lots.  This does not require a cluster.  This does not have the fields.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I just want to underscore the reason why we did that.  We talked about that with staff.  As I think you all know but I want to make sure that it’s totally clear, in order to cluster and in order to – let’s assume you all said to us right now “boy, that charrette alternative 9, 27 lot cluster is a great plan David.  How do we get there legally?”  You can’t get there legally unless we go to the Town Board and we receive authorization for 27 lots.  You cannot cluster and increase your density.  You can cluster but you can’t use the cluster to increase your density.  What we were required to do as a matter of law, and there were two cases that I discussed with Tom and John, Penfield Panorama and Shawangunks, these two New York State cases say that you lay out a conventional plan even if it requires certain permits: like a Wetlands Permit or a Steep Slopes Permit.  As long as it is a lot that is allowable, as long as a matter of law you could achieve that lot that is a permissible lot simply for analytical purposes for a cluster.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked per ceiling?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded exactly.  We came in with the 27 lot conventional tonight so that you understand, though Tim may have proposed the 25, we needed to show that the 27 not only meets the lot count formula but it’s also on a plan that would be an appropriate point for the Town Board to use.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked but you’re not recommending that as a plan?  If it wasn’t the cluster you’d go back to the 25?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded most likely depending upon a number of different factors.  Look, they’ve already applied for that so I’m not going to tell you that that’s not the case but the fact of the matter is 27 lots could be done.  There are two lots up there that, we’re candid, we don’t think they’re the greatest lots.  They’re very constrained and pragmatically speaking, I think Tim and I know, we’d spend a lot of time banging our heads against the wall trying to determine whether we’ve adequately mitigated the impacts associated with those lots and we don’t need to do that with you.  Instead, our client had said “well, 25 lots in the conventional without building a field and having single family, fee simple lots that meet zoning would be acceptable.”  However, as we kind of moved in the direction of a cluster with the charrette, then we now need to give you the tools to at least get us the 27.  Where it goes from there is…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it still needs to be verified the 27.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated understood.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think at this point we need to start to think about how we want to move forward from tonight.  The Board has discussed the possibility of a site inspection.  We’re looking at April 1st for that.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked April 1st for the site walk?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes. 

Mr. Tim Cronin asked would it be at all possible if the Board were to do it the week before which would allow the Board to have a conversation at the work session on the 29th?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know that we would even be ready to do it.  I’d like for us to take that walk, take some time, think about – because remember now, we are happy to have the charrette, we have a sense of what people at least had a consensus about but the Board has to do what the Board does and that is to look at all of the pieces coming into this whole approval.  I don’t know that that’s enough time.  I think we need more time to reflect on what you’ve presented as options or possibilities, the charrette, what we see with our own eyes there.  I know that when I look at the charrette configuration number 9, I can see that clearly I would easily drop two lots, so you wouldn’t get 27, you would get 25, easily.  We all have our own sense of how we think this could be improved.  We need time to talk about that so I was thinking that if we had the site visit we could schedule a meeting with you guys after that April 1st meeting, somewhere in April before the May meeting, we sit down around the table.  We’ve had a chance to look at the charrette, a chance to go out on the field, a chance to reflect on our own personal sense of what’s really workable here and then we can have a conversation.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked so you’re talking about a special meeting in mid-April?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.  I didn’t get approval from the Board entirely.  I know some of the members are – I just expressed to you my feeling about this.  I would like to propose this and I know some other members would want to do that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated whatever the Board’s – real simple and I think you all need to discuss this from what I’m seeing.  We want to meet with you in April.  We’re ready to do the site walk with you on April 1st.  I think a site walk with the Board is a terrific idea, it’s necessary.  I think it’s great on every project it’s certainly great on this one.  We’re ready to do it.  I don’t want to lose the month of April.  There’s no good reason to lose the month of April.  If you prefer doing a special meeting and we sit around the table, I’ve done plenty of special meetings with your Board, they’re very productive, that’s terrific.  If you decide not to, I think the April, whatever the regular meeting date is I don’t have my calendar in front of me…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated typically the special meetings occur as part of the public hearing process where we take a time out and have just a single special meeting, not usually before a public hearing.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s up to you.  You would know Steve, typically, better than I would know typically.  When you say typically that’s when it’s done, I trust your judgment, whatever, I didn’t propose the special meeting, many a time I’ve asked for it.

Mr. John Klarl stated you take in so much information at the special meeting.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated then that’s when you do the…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you have a full four weeks from today between now and your next regular meeting to digest everything we’ve given you, everything we’ve talked about, read the charrette report backwards and forwards and do a site walk and we would see you in four weeks.  If the Chair wants to do a special meeting that’s for you to decide.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think I would like to try that.  We don’t always have to do everything the way things were done in the past.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated all I’m saying Loretta is that…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that we need to have time around the table, we already have a certain amount of information.  If we are not in agreement at that point then certainly when the public hearing comes up we still have another opportunity to have another meeting.  We’ve had more than one of these meetings for any number of applications.
Mr. John Klarl asked if you have this special meeting you’re talking about would you like to tack it on to a work session?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded it depends.  If we don’t have a heavy agenda for that evening, yes that’s fine but I just think we need to sort of butt heads a little bit about what we’ve been hearing and what we’ve seen and then when the public hearings come about.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated my point Loretta is that the – we have all the information, what’s missing is the public’s input to that information and that’s always when we then sit down and have a special meeting.  I’m not saying just because we’ve done it in the past we should do it again.  All I’m saying is that I don’t see where we’re going to have any more information than we now have to have that special meeting.  What’s missing is the public input.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I want to interject on that because that one I feel very strongly about, I want to remind Steve if ever in my experience in over 20 years with the Town of Cortlandt I’ve had the public’s involvement at the inception of a project, I didn’t work on Jacob’s Hill so I didn’t do that charrette.  And, the charrette that was done in connection with the ice skating rink, though I was peripherally involved and I didn’t go to those meetings.  This one I went to the meetings.  The public was involved from before we even kicked off with you.  We had people who lived behind us, people who live on the street, people on every Town Committee…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m not saying they weren’t involved I just haven’t heard have them say it publicly to us.  All I have is a written report.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated actually you have a written report…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand that but there seems to be some contention about that written report.  Right or wrong David?  I just want to hear what the people have to say.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated bring them in.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so that we can do just what you’re doing.  You sat there and said one thing and now you’re saying something else.  Explain that to me.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine and that can be done at any time, whenever you’re ready we’d love to – my client would love to see this play out sooner rather than later.  He waited patiently, went through the charrette process, paid a fair amount of money to do it and I said this to you somewhat passionately at your work session two months back and let’s all say it calmly now, I don’t want my client to be penalized for having participated in this open deliberative charrette process.  I’m not suggesting Madame Chair that you’re trying to do that but don’t let us get caught in this special meeting debate.  Give us a meeting in April whenever you decide.  Do the site walk but just remember, as far as the applicant’s concerned and I think fairly anyone who went to those meetings, 30 some odd members of the public, members of the Town, residents of the Town of Cortlandt actively consulted, opined and offered constructive advice on how we should design this, 9 different plans.  You need to catch up, you’re right, you missed – and that’s what I was blind to.  I didn’t realize when we came in front of you at that work session two months ago that you really hadn’t been fully briefed on everything that we had just lived through for three months.

Mr. John Klarl stated we purposely try to keep the Planning Board members out of the charrette process.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated very well.  I realized that after the fact that we had lived through, I wouldn’t say it was contentious, but it was extensive.  There was a lot of energy, a lot of sweat and a fair amount of money that was spent in that process and you all need to get caught up.  That combined with the fact that there’s this oddity of; was there a consensus or was there not a consensus?  Let’s cut to the chase.  Let us come in and let’s do it, whether it’s April 1st, April 6th or whatever date, give us a date.  Don’t put us off until May please.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the normal thing would be the Sunday site inspection, they’re back on the agenda on April 3rd to discuss the site inspection and then at that time you can decide in mid-April if you want to get together for the special meeting.  That’s just sort of putting it off for a month but you don’t have to decide tonight.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and what would be the objective of the special meeting?  We’re not going to arrive at a lot count right now.  We’ve got a process to go through yet before we arrive at what alternative or what the lot count or whether we have a ball field or not.  What is the objective to reach at that…

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we’re starting to look at the drawings that have been presented to us and figure out where they want to go with this.  If we, as members, feel that 27 lots in this particular configuration is a little too much, I think personally, as I said already, there are two lots that I would immediately get rid of.  I don’t think that it’s fair to have somebody spend the kind of money that they are spending for these properties and be that close to the ball field.  I would like to see two of those lots eliminated.  I suspect that other members have other input that they would like to have.  It’s a matter of talking a little bit ahead of time and getting a sense, a feel for where we are as a Board and when the public hearings come about, the public has – they have the opportunity again to have their input but we do these kinds of things all the time.  We’re sitting down and we’re sort of talking about where we are in our own minds about this particular proposal.  I don’t see any problem with that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m not saying there’s a problem with it.  I’m just saying I’m wondering what the objective was.  We may come up with an alternative of 11 or 12 or 13 or whatever number is, one of the issues that we should I think focus on there is this ball field issue which seems to be a very contentious issue after the fact maybe.  And it is, in my mind too, as to whether or not it should be there or not be there. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how can you do that without a traffic study?  We can sit around a table but talk about a ball field in or out but without empirical data…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and the ball field is an important part of any alternative that you commit with over here.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m going to inject myself into this with some fear and some trepidation.  This is why two months ago at the work session I said “do you just send us to the Town Board for cluster authorization so we can get it, come back, and go through the process.”  What I heard the two of you just discussing, I agree with both of you, traffic study, full analysis, do you do the field, do you not do the field?  What’s the lot count?  That’s all going to come out in the SEQRA process.  So, what I would like to do, I’d like to get going with the SEQRA process in earnest and maybe one of your alternatives in the SEQRA process will be no ball field and one of the alternatives in the SEQRA process will be with the ball field, and maybe one of the alternatives will be without two of the lots that some Board member may decide those are inappropriate lots.  I fully understand we’ve got to study all of that and we’re ready to study all of that.  What you’ve heard, and maybe sensed, my impatience at the prior work session, I want to do that and I know I can best do that if I know you’re authorized to approve a cluster should you decide you want to.  Mr. Bianchi, I don’t think you need to decide lot count now.  I don’t think you need to decide that in the next month or two but I do think the threshold decision you need to make is, is a cluster something that ought to be considered on this property?  If you can make that determination and you can make that recommendation we can go back to the Town Board and get the Town Board under New York State law and your local Code to authorize you to study it and consider it.  That’s it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated speaking for myself I’m not clear whether cluster is really appropriate or not right now.  And, why put the process into motion and the Town Board into the process if we’re not sure, speaking for myself anyway, not sure whether that’s going to be one of the final alternatives?
Mr. David Steinmetz asked how are we going to get you that information?  

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded but what we discussed – and the timing is different.  Maybe we think it’s six or eight months, maybe David thinks it’s two or three months but we did discuss it at a staff meeting.  We have to do some more here and then the debate is how much more here before it goes to the Town Board for cluster?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded I agree with that and I think that’s the process that we have to follow.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated and again, we haven’t even started SEQRA.  As Steve notes, no traffic study, there’s really – we haven’t even talked about environmental issues.  There’s a slew of issues that need to be discussed.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated in the SEQRA process, when we always have our alternatives to study, you can put in conventional and cluster without having gone to the Town Board asking for cluster authority.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. John Klarl stated we’ve done that where we don’t have cluster authority yet.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you absolutely can.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and then we can ask…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and if we land on a cluster then you go for the authority.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and I want everybody to be clear, you absolutely can.  I don’t want to altogether go down the path too far thinking that ultimately that the cluster, as endorsed by the charrette, makes the most sense only to find out six months, eight, ten months, a year down the road that the Town Board wouldn’t approve the notion of a cluster.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you’re trying to move in parallel in different roads at the same time here and I know you’re trying to save time…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated sequentially Tom.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I guess I’m old fashioned.  I like to go through the process.  I like to go through the discussion.  I like to maybe, if we have a cluster option, then we put that up there and if we we’re serious about it then we go forward.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated if that’s the way the Board decides, all of you decide you want to do this, then let’s pos. dec. it, let’s come up with the scope, let’s come up with the alternatives that need to be studied.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that makes a lot of sense. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t think you necessarily have to pos. dec. tonight but we do the site inspection, come back in April and then the next logical step in our sort of way of thinking is to pos. dec. it.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that would be fine.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated scoping document and alternatives. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and it’s a year old and I never shared it with anyone but you know as part of the process I’ve already developed a scope because you were going in that route about a year ago so if at the next meeting you adopt a pos. dec. we notify everybody and then we start with the scope.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you’re not getting any resistance.  We would obviously like the scope to not be, Chris, hitting – sometimes he just hits control and the scope punches out so I know he’s not going to do that here.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this does have a little bit of the Upland Lane about it because some tree work has already been done, a biodiversity study’s already been done, there’s some different things that will be in the scope because some of the studies have already been done.

Mr. John Klarl stated we may pare back a little bit.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated let’s do the site visit.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked so we’re doing the site visit on the 1st, are we coming in on the 3rd?  Is that how we’re leaving off?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I said I’d like to propose this and the Board will have to agree or not agree to do this other meeting between our April and May sessions.  I can’t have the meeting alone.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Loretta, you invite us, we’ll show up.

Mr. John Klarl stated everyone seems to agree on doing the site visit first. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well, we all agreed that we would have the site inspection, that’s not the issue.  What I’m proposing is I guess an issue with some people because it’s not exactly what has been done before.  I just want to know.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s not that it hasn’t been done before, the information we have when we’ve done it is a DEIS, where we’d sit down around the table with all the information.  We’ve got a charrette report and it’s nice and we’ve all read it but we have nothing else.  We can sit around the table, Loretta, as Chair I will agree with whatever you want to do in terms of a special meeting.  I’m just saying, I don’t know what we’re going to discuss at the meeting but I’ll be there.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I agree.

Mr. Robert Foley stated one thing could be the biodiversity report which came in later.  I would agree.  I’m amenable to a special meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let me have somebody who’s agreeable to it to make a motion to get a second on it and then we’ll decide on – actually we can decide on a date at this particular point so it can become part of the motion.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’ll make a motion for a special meeting.  Granted it would be slightly unusual, but I don’t know about a date.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can’t we do this at the April meeting when staff looks at the calendar to see what’s available?

Mr. Robert Foley stated for the actual date maybe.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated somebody had just said that we could do it as part of the work session for that month if we don’t have a lot of stuff on that calendar.
Mr. John Klarl stated tack it onto the work session.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked have we ruled out what Chris was suggesting?

Mr. John Klarl stated pos. dec. and the scope.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I’m more for that.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated absolutely, that could happen tonight.  We recommend doing it at the next meeting.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I agree with Mr. Rothfeder, we would like, if I understand what he’s saying, I’d like to come in on April 3rd and at least get a pos. dec. and move in the direction of preparing a scope.  Whether you discussed the application and the details the night of the 3rd, which at the moment we’re asking you to do, or if you decide you’re pushing us to some other date in the month of April for a special meeting to discuss the project, regardless, I’d ask that you make a motion: 1) to conduct the site inspection on April 1st, and 2) to have staff prepare a pos. dec. for April 3rd.  That’s what the applicant is asking to consider.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because time wise, the regularly scheduled work session for April is the 26th, so if you’re going to have a special meeting like the 19th, which I’m not saying you would, then it’s like why don’t we just have it on the 26th.  Then if you have it on the 12th, you’re close to the meeting that you just had before then, the 3rd.  Maybe the suggestion would be to hold the special meeting the same night as the work session rather than having another meeting.  I think we can decide that at the April meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I’m amenable to that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked do we have the motion for the site visit first?  We want to do them separately?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded okay, yes that would be a good idea.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I move to schedule a site visit for April 1st.

Seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what exactly do we want them to lay out for us?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s been a while since we’ve had really a huge one like this.  I don’t think anyone has ever four-cornered 27 houses before.  They can do the whole road on the way in and then do some representation.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we would do the road.  We would do the ball field…

Mr. Tim Cronin stated there’s enough existing items on the property, whether it’s a black topped driveway, a gravel driveway, structures.  You can see here that these are existing buildings, so you know that the road’s going to go right up alongside those buildings.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you’ll know where you are on this site.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated there’s fencing, there’s corrals.  When we walked this property back in September and I think members of the charrette can agree, we pretty much had a good idea where we were throughout the entire site.  

Mr. John Klarl asked Tim you don’t think you have to stake out the road to understand where it’s going to be?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded no.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the road is the easiest part.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded you can see these are existing buildings here – when we’re out there we’ll be able to stand five feet within any spot you want along that road.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated what I’d like to have done is that you mark out the 25 foot buffer from Apple Hill to your project.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes, there’s a stone wall on that property line so – that’s easy enough.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated that can be done.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m talking about across the back there.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated yes, we know.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded there’s a stone wall right here.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated on the line, so you’ll know – we’ll bring you to that wall.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and I want to know what 25 feet into this property, your property, your proposal.  Where would that line be?  That’s important for me.  You’re going to do the corners of the field?  Yes?
Mr. Tim Cronin responded that, we can show you that because – we’ll the field that’s shown in alternative 9 which is the larger field.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and then, I personally would like the houses that are closest to the field to be marked so we can have a very good visual sense of what that is.

Mr. Tim Cronin asked are you talking about 9 and 10?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m looking at alternative 9…

Mr. Robert Foley stated 27 and 14 were the two close…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated for sure, those two. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated 14 and 27.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, those were the closest ones.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated yes, we see it.  April 1st, did you guys vote on that?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded not yet, we’re going to vote.  

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we need another motion to deal with this meeting.  At this point we’re talking about tacking on to our regular work session.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Thursday the 26th.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t want to make the proposals.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we, on the April 26th work session that we also include time for a special meeting on this application.

Mr. John Klarl asked would you hold that before the work session or after the work session?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded after the work session.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if it’s going to be after the work session, similar to what we’ve done in the past two meetings, John then it’s not technically a special meeting is it?

Mr. John Klarl responded we’re going to advertise it for a special meeting if we’re going to have a special meeting…

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have to poll the Board.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mr. Rothfeder; no, Mr. Kessler; no, Mr. Bianchi; no, Ms. Taylor; yes, Mr. Bernard; yes, Mr. Daly; yes, Mr. Foley; yes – 4 to 3.  So, we’ll be there on the 26th for a special meeting.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked what I didn’t hear and I thought you were going to address it – I thought someone was going to make a motion to bring us back on the 3rd also?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we don’t need a motion for that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated usually you say that you usually bring this matter back under ‘old business’ on the 3rd for purposes of discussion of a pos. dec. 

Mr. John Klarl stated I thought that was within the mix.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked is that implicit.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded well, pretty much.

Mr. John Klarl stated now it’s going to be explicit.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’ll see you on the 1st and we’ll see you on the 3rd and then the 26th.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the site visit, since it’s a large area, we just go into the main area and Chris will instruct us or is there a two part for this where we may go up to Apple Hill then drive back around or vice versa.  I don’t know.  I don’t mind it.  I’ll walk five miles.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m really more interested in seeing those areas closer to Apple Hill and certainly to the roads coming in and leading up.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated it’s 35 acres.  It’s going to take some time.

Mr. Robert Foley asked Tim, the length of going from where the main entrance is all the way to Apple Hill would be about a mile?  At least, walking by the time you sidetrack…

Mr. Tim Cronin responded those lots are 150 feet – no, a half mile maybe.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you said it took three hours.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated well, by the time you walk, you go take a look at this, you stop here, you chat about this, and so it does take some time.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I believe that we want to accomplish this in two hours right Tom?  At least that’s what was discussed.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated yes, because it’s Palm Sunday and I have other obligations.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated maybe I’m thinking – Bob is what you were getting at that if you park in the parking area of the disturbed area where the buildings are, you start there…

Mr. Tim Cronin stated which is right here, the entrance to Croton Avenue, everybody parks there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and then you walk a certain amount but then get back in your cars and go over to Apple Hill and then walk in from that direction?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded by the time you get to where you’re interested for the end of the field and the lots 14, you’re going to be right up in here.  At that point, well let’s take a walk along that ridge and see what the slope is like and the trees.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why don’t you put up that one?  Can you put up…

Mr. Tim Cronin stated we would be parking right in there, you want to get up and see 27 and 14, that’s right here, Apple Hill’s there and if you want to take a walk along that slope to see the trees that Bartlett indicated was worth saving.  Also there were some tulip trees up along this area he mentioned in his report.  I think that it’s important – if we’re going to talk about trying to preserve areas, I think it’s important that we go out there and take a look at it just to see exactly what it is we’re trying to preserve. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I only meant to accommodate some of us who may not walk that far if we bifurcated it and did half and half.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded you could but…

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked why can you do the sports field, do the entrance and then look at the slopes around 12, 13, and 14 and then go back on Apple Hill?  

Mr. Tim Cronin asked go up here?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded then drive up there and then look in there and then go up to 6, 5, 4, up in that corner.  I don’t know.  It’s up to the Board.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated but you know, what you may do is one or two cars park down here, and one or two cars park up here this way you can take this travelled way or that travelled way.  That may be an alternative so two or three people can park down at the main entrance on Croton Avenue, two or three people can park up on Apple Hill at the end of this right-of-way and then that’ll at least give you some flexibility as far as when you want to complete the site walk.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t mind the long walk.  I’m used to it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’d like to ask staff maybe to prepare an agenda for the special meeting so we have a list of what we’re going to talk about.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded okay.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion at the work session of April 26th to include part of it to be a special meeting on this application.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we now know that we have 4 to 3 and we’re going to be doing the meeting.  I think you guys are done and we’ll see you again at our next meeting.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you very much.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked are we doing a pos. dec. for the next meeting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we said that we’d do it at the next meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated April meeting to adopt the pos. dec.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated adopt it at the April meeting.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so we don’t need a motion to prepare one?

Mr. John Klarl responded we’ve done that occasionally but the understanding right now, Chris is that you’re going to have a pos. dec. for that meeting for them to adopt.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think I should be directed to have a pos. dec. for the April meeting.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I thought that was implicit and I tried to make it explicit so I thought we did that.  Chris, just call me and I’ll tell you what you need to do.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated let’s do that, let’s make a motion.

Mr. John Klarl stated let’s give direction to Mr. Kehoe.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’ll add that to my proposal to add for the site visit and to prepare a pos. dec. for the next meeting.

Mr. John Klarl stated the April 3rd meeting.

Seconded.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated and also just for the record, at the special meeting we can discuss a scoping document.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that would be great.  For the record, I think it’s been 10 years since I willingly took a pos. dec. on the chin so I want that noted.  Good night.



*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS 

PB 15-95    a.
Letter dated February 21, 2012 from Joel Greenberg, AIA requesting Planning Board approval for a new car washing system with a canopy to be located at Enterprise Rent-A-Car located at 2077 Cortlandt Boulevard (Route 6).

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated good evening Madame Chair and the Board.  Joel Greenberg for the applicant.  I think you have the drawings that I’m showing you right here now.  This was the original site plan that was approved back in 1995.  This section small 8 1/2 x 11 sheet shows the location of the proposed carwash and then the drawing below that shows actually what the carwash and the canopy looks like.  Just for your information, at the present time, the cars are just washed with a hose with the water going sheet flow over the site.  This proposal, if you look very carefully, the cars are put on a mat which is seen right here at the bottom of the picture and all the water is then taken and then recycled so no water will go off the site, no water will go on the existing blacktop.  All the water will be absorbed into the mat and then brought back into the tanks and then reused again.  We think that it’s obviously environmentally a lot better situation.  We’re not adding any blacktop.  We’re not subtracting any blacktop.  Everything will remain exactly the same except for this mat, the absorbent mat and this canvas structure that’s going to be over it for the cleaning and the washing of the cars.  We would hope that we would be able to – we do need two Variances which we’ve applied to the Zoning Board for.  We’d hope that you would approve this so that we can go to the Zoning Board and get the structure under way.
Mr. John Klarl asked what are the two Variances Mr. Greenberg?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded we need a side and rear yard Variance.  Again, we’re going on top of existing black top and this proposed structure is going right in the corner where the south and the west side black top corner meets.

Mr. Robert Foley asked will there be any disturbance noise wise with this machinery as opposed to what they have now to the residents behind it?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded no.  There’ll be no more noise than what you’d have for, let’s say, with a hose.  I can get you information from the company.  They’ve been in business now for about eight years.  Their main office is located in Florida and they now have Enterprise have hired them to do this at all their places of business.  The national car rental has also hired them.  Again, I can send you the specific information detailing exactly how the process works but I’ve looked at it and it seems to me like a very environmental friendly process and something I think would be a positive thing for the Town to approve.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the pressure washer’s already there the way they use it?  
Mr. Joel Greenberg asked I’m sorry?

Mr. Robert Foley asked the pressure washer, is that a new item that will be there?  They’re just using a hose now…

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded correct, all they use now is a hose.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so there’s not going to be any sound that’s coming from the devices or these tanks or anything?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded no.  Again, the nice thing is that none of the water is flowing out all over the site as – the other nice thing about this thing too, I almost forgot to say this, per car wash it only uses four gallons per car wash so the amount of water it uses is really tremendously low versus an open hose so on and so forth.  We’re talking about four gallons per car.

Mr. John Bernard asked has the applicant gotten you to look at the stairs that go from one level to the other?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded that’s over here.

Mr. John Bernard asked did they have you looking at those?  Is anyone looking at those stairs and that handrail?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded obviously you’ve mentioned it so it’s something we’ll look at.  If it’s something that’s got to be repaired, we will do it.

Mr. John Bernard stated it might be worth taking a look at it.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded I absolutely agree with you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I want to just suggest that, we’ve left the idea of a site inspection kind of with a question mark.  I personally think that members of the Board should go and look at this.  I have used the business.  I have no problems with them.  They’re efficient.  They do what they’re supposed to do.  That’s not the problem.  I think that site is very, very tight and I think, based on my sense over the years, that it’s gotten even tighter in terms of the numbers of cars at any given moment that are there.  I’m not sure, given how many of the times that I’ve come in and seen that many cars there, where would you really put that and how would this – what would happen to all the cars that are normally there?  Where would they go?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded I can answer that question.  Right now, the area where we’re proposing this geo-mat which is this corner over here, this is where the cars are washed right now.  We’re not adding an additional area that has to be used for car washing.  We’re using the same spot that’s being used right now so that the area of parking, and everything, none of that has changed.  This is basically – it’s like a one-car lot.  It’s a one-car space so it’s not that we’re taking up three or four spaces to put this unit in place.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re saying this whole thing takes up one space only?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes.  Again, it’s in the corner.  It’s away from the area where the traffic goes in and out which is the curb cut along Route 6.  I think I know what you’re talking about too, but I think what’s happened here now, we have a couple of handicapped parking spaces over here and basically what happens now is the cars – you’re picked up from your house and you’re brought to Enterprise with one of their cars, you park it down here, your car is out here waiting, just been cleaned obviously, it’s facing out and then you just pull out and the next car comes in.  Obviously, as you said, over the years their business has increased which is a good thing for the Town, and is a good thing for the community and I think that they can – obviously I’m going to take what Mr. Bernard said and take a look at this area too and if this takes a more re-stripping then obviously over the years it’s probably faded so that people know where to park.  I think that’s probably the concern that you have and I think that if we reinstate what the original site plan called for, once that’s done again and the signage is put up I think the concern that you have will be alleviated.  I think that’s something that can be taken care of on site without any problem.  Of course, the stairs, if that’s a situation that should be looked at – as a matter of fact I will be going up tomorrow so I will take care of that tomorrow.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m just looking at the actual photograph you have here and it really looks like more than one car space.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded actually it’s the equivalent of let’s say a handicap space.  Handicap space is approximately 13 feet and this is approximately – I take that back, it’s actually 14 feet so it’s a space and a half.  I apologize but that whole area is where one car is put.  That’s what I was trying to bring out.  There’s one car that’s put over here in the corner and that’s where it’s washed.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we discussed briefly, I think, at the work session is that I think staff would think that maybe – I think you should refer it back.  I think that if you get a chance, it’s a commercial establishment.  It’s not like going into the woods.  You can drive by, take a look at it and see.  I think that Ed and I need to do a little bit more investigation so I think it should be referred back rather than potentially approved tonight.  And, if you get a chance to go out and take a look at it because it is a little tight in back of the building.

Mr. John Klarl asked Mr. Greenberg, are you on the Zoning Board of Appeals agenda for next week?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes I am.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but referring back with sort of a defacto site inspection that we’re not – when you get a chance to swing by and look at it so we’ll have the ability to discuss the site inspection at the next meeting.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairman I move that we refer this back to Planning and Engineering.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated Happy St. Patrick’s day.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you might want to let Irena know that we’re going to be coming by some time – not necessarily as a large group.
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ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn.
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Next Meeting: TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 2012

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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